
Questions and Answers from MDFT QA from Bidder’s Conference and Website 
FINAL 

 
1. Is the expectation that the individuals hired through this QA contract who are doing 

MDFT training would have to be already certified at the onset of the start of the 
contract or that they would initiate the process of certification at the onset of the 
contract? 
 
Answer:  They can be hired with either qualification.  They may be already certified as a 
MDFT Trainer when they are hired, or can get certified during process of being in their 
role as a MDFT Trainer.  
 

2. On page 7 it says 30 MDFT teams with 120 full-time clinicians, supervisors and case 
managers.  On page 6, it says 18 teams, 72 therapists, 18 supervisors and 36 assistants.  
For the RFP, we should work with the 18 MDFT teams, 72 therapists, 18 supervisors and 
36 assistants? 
 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

3. Are all of them full-time positions of just the MDFT trainers? 
 
Answer:  The minimum of 4 FTE (Full Time Equivalent) staffing must be proposed. 
 

4. Do the bullet points and demographics come directly from PIE or would it be PIE and we 
would need to do extra data collection? 
 
Answer:  Some bulleted items on page 11 come from the PIE data collection system. 
Other data points will come from the MDFT Clinical Portal.  Data collection points will 
come from PIE or the MDFT Clinical Portal. 
 

5. What’s the difference between episode data and service data? 
 
Answer:  These 2 terms are interchangeable. 
 

6. The fidelity reviews, that’s the second last bullet point, they’re assuming that it comes 
from the portal? 
 
Answer:  Yes, that would come from the portal data system. 
 

7. Is there any expectation to integrate across those two data systems, the PIE system and 
BFT system?  And if there are expectations, are there any unique identifiers that link the 
two? 
 



Answer:  They are not linked, nor is this expected to occur at this time.   
 

8. Does MDFT international send any of their elements to the QA contractor as part of this 
contract? 

 
Answer:  Yes, whoever is awarded this contract would be using the portal data to 
monitor the fidelity of the staff getting certified. 

 
9. And that would come directly from MDFTI or DCF? 

 
Answer:  MDFT-I 
 

10. On the bullet points (on page 11), what is the service transition information? 
 
Answer:  This refers to the transition of services for the client.   
 

11. Is it the contractor’s responsibility to make sure that providers enter all the data and 
that they’re compliant with entering with data, or is it just for pulling it out of the 
system and analyzing it and reporting? 
 
Answer:  Data entry is the responsibility of the provider agency for each MDFT team.  It 
is the responsibility of the PDOC (Program Development and Oversight Coordinator) 
managing the contracts directly with the providers about data entry into PIE. It is not 
the responsibility of MDFT QA entity to enforce that.  
  

12. Is that for the portal and for PIE? 
 
Answer:  The answer to Question #11 above is relevant to both PIE and the MDFT 
Clinical Portal. 
 

13. Is that the contractor’s problem to figure out where the data are missing?  How much of 
that monitoring is this contractor doing? 
 
Answer:  Again, it is the responsibility of the PDOC managing the contracts directly with 
the providers about data entry into PIE. It is not the responsibility of the MDFT QA entity 
to enforce that. Entity does focus on data for progress with certification, fidelity, and 
other management for the MDFT system. 
 

14. Are there required fees for the portal or for the supervision that MDFTI is going to 
provide to the consultants?  Does that come out of this budget or is that separate?  If it 
is supposed to come out of this budget, could you let us know what that amount is? 
 
Answer:  When submitting a budget, do not include any fees for the MDFT Clinical 
Portal. 



 
15. On the Consolidated Budget form, on page 13, fiscal management, point 8, I’m unclear 

whether it is asking for a proposed budget for this specific project or budget for the 
agency? 
 
Answer:  The Budget and Narrative submitted with this proposal should only include the 
income/expenses related to the program being proposed. It should not include 
income/expenses for the agency as a whole, although successful applicants may be 
required to provide a whole agency budget at the time of contract development. 
Additionally, the Budget submitted with this proposal should be inclusive of all income 
and expenses for the proposed program, including any income that is not provided by 
the Department. 
  

16. Is it a projected budget? 
 
Answer:  Yes.  It would show how the MDFT QA contractor would spend the funds in 1 
fiscal year using the state Fiscal Year 2019 (July 1, 2018 – 6/30/2019), although the 
Department reserves the right to negotiate the proposed budget based on 
Departmental need.   
 

17. On the form, it says that the mileage rate is $.445, but we understand that it is $.545? 
 
Answer:  The current General Services Administration (GSA) rate is 54.5 cents per mile, 
which will be the authorized reimbursement rate for mileage under contracts executed 
for this service.     
 

18. Can we put in the budget items like cabinets, furniture, etc.? 
 
Answer:  Yes, if these items are needed in the first year of the project.  Projected 
expenses should be entered in the 500 Series: Consumables or 700 Series: Capital 
Expenditures for items which have a useful life of one year or more and a value or cost 
of $5,000 or more, and these costs should be noted in the ‘Start-up’ column of the 
Budget, as they will not be annualized into future year funding. 
 

19. Would DCF approve renting space for MDFT International from an employee?  Would 
that be something that would be considered okay with DCF? 
 
Answer:  While OPM Cost Standards allow for Less-Than-Arm-Length Lease agreements, 
provided that such are disclosed to the Department as Related Party Transactions, and 
provided that the rent amounts represent Fair Market Value, the intent of this standard 
does not include scenarios in which a company is paying rent to an individual employee 
home owner for a home office, but rather scenarios in which a company is paying rent 
to and(for an) individual employee who rents out office space outside of their home . 



The Department would consider this an unallowable expense. 
  

20. Do you want a full fiscal year budget starting July 1, even though it’s not a full fiscal 
year? 
 
Answer:  Yes, please submit a budget based on a full fiscal year. The Department will 
work with successful applicants to pro-rate the annual cost based on implementation 
dates. 
 

21. It sounded to us that it was meant for more agencies that are providing direct client 
care.  We don’t provide that direct client care.  Can we adjust it? 
 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

22. The Letter of Intent, is it okay that the form suffices or do you need a personal letter? 
 
Answer:  Located on page 16, you must use just that form.   

 
23. Are the pages double-sided or single-sided? 

 
Answer:  Single-sided. 
 

24. Is that sample quality improvement report from some other program that you may have 
worked with or are you supposed to draft template one what it might look like for an 
MDFT report? 
 
Answer:  The applicant can submit a draft template of a MDFT report or a similar report 
for an existing program. 
 

25. On page 9, are there specific measures that you have or can we use our own? 
 
Answer:  You use your own. 
 

26. Letters of Agreement.  What kinds of letters would you be looking for? 
 
Answer:  Letters of Agreement are used for a variety of reasons:  if you’re going to rent 
space from someone at a lower rate; subcontract or work closely with another agency; 
or need space for an outing.  It applies to anything that is relevant to the execution of 
the program that’s not necessarily built in anywhere, or relies on a commitment from an 
agency other than your own to complete. 
 

27. In the appendices, there’s a CHRO compliance package.  Is that detailed anywhere? 
 



Answer:  Yes, on page 24.   
 

28. Regarding the budget, when you speak of the agency contribution or in-kind, is there a 
specific or minimum amount we have to provide for in-kind or agency contribution? 
 
Answer:  No. 
 

29. If the organization has an MDFT team, does that preclude them from having an MDFT 
QA? 
 
Answer:  No. 
 

30. Would the MDFT QA need to be approved by MDFT International (MDFT I) if it were 
awarded? 
 
Answer:  No. 
 
If the MDFT QA contract was awarded to an agency, would it then affect the 
organization’s ability to apply for an MDFT team? 
 
Answer:  “No” because anyone can apply for any of the RFPs. 
 

32. Are you requesting a 1-year or 3-year budget? 

 

Answer:  DCF is requesting a one year budget that shows how the MDFT QA contractor 
would spend the funds in 1 fiscal year using the State Fiscal Year 2019 (July 1, 2018 – 
6/30/2019).   
 

33. Concerning Appendix 10, Sample Quality Improvement Report: As you know this RFP is 
for training and not direct service. Although we will be training people who provide direct 
service. Do you want the Quality Improvement Report to be for the grantee (i.e., quality 
improvement for the training and QA) and/or for the programs who are delivering MDFT 
(ie. Quality improvement concerning the delivery of MDFT)? 

 

Answer:  The sample Quality Improvement Report should be for the programs who are 
delivering MDFT. 

 
34. What is the minimum FTE for the Director of MDFT Training and Quality Assurance 

position and the Supervisor Training Coordinator (p. 9-10) 

Answer:  The minimum FTE for each of these positions should be 1 FTE. 
 

35. Is splitting a position with a minimum 1.0 FTE between two or more people allowable 

(e.g. .50 FTE each)? 

Answer:  No.  



 
36. Is there an expectation or requirement for a Data Analyst position for data analysis and 

reporting? 

Answer:  No. 
 

37. Is the Contractor required to provide ongoing QA for data compliance (e.g. ensure that 

MDFT providers are entering all data accurately and on time into the MDFT fidelity 

system and PIE)?  Or is the Contractor required solely to analyze and report on the data 

that are available in the systems? 

Answer:  The Contractor is required to solely to analyze and report on the data that are 

available in the systems. 

 
38. Is the Contractor expected or required to provide meals to trainees for in person 

trainings (Introduction to MDFT, Intensive trainings, Introduction to MDFT Supervision, 

on-site booster trainings, etc.)?  If so, what is the average number of trainees per 

training day? 

Answer:  No, meals are not required for trainings, but are an allowable expense per 
OPM Cost Standards. 

 
39. Is the Contractor required to use funds (e.g., consultation, travel) to subcontract with 

MDFI-International? 

Answer:  No, there is not a requirement to subcontract with MDFI International. 

40. Is the Contractor required to provide any supplies or materials to MDFT providers (e.g. 

Treatment manuals, video cameras)? 

Answer:  Treatment manuals – yes; cameras – no. 
 

41. P.14 indicates that all appendices must be included; one Appendix is “Letters of 

Agreement."  Is there a Letter of Agreement that is required?   

Answer:  No, but see Question #26. 
 

42. Is the Supervisor Training Coordinator required to be a certified MDFT trainer? 

Answer:  Not at the time of hire.  He or she will have to go through the process of MDFT 
trainer certification. 

 
43. Will the contractor be provided with administrative access to the MDFT Clinical Portal to 

gather data for reporting and QA?  

Answer:  This will be negotiated with MDFT-I. 
 

44. Is the attached consolidated budget form the form we should use?  What form should we 

use?  



Answer:  Yes.  Please use the DCF RFP Budget POS which can be obtained from the 
following link: http://www.ct.gov/dcf/lib/dcf/contract_management/xls/dcf_rfp_budget.xls 

 
45. Do you want the projected budget for the whole organization (MDFT International) 

including non-DCF related activities and/or just for this proposed project? We are 

confused. At the Bidder Conference we were told to submit a project budget only. 

However, item 3 on the DCF Consolidated Budget Forms and Narrative Instructions 

(Revised April 2012) seems to indicate we need to submit an entire agency budget. It 

reads, “The consolidated budget should represent your agency’s budget, the “All other 

non DCF” column should represent the balance of your total agency budget less the 

DCF funded program columns.” And then item 10 says “The column headed All other 

Non DCF should include the total funding the agency receives from all other sources and 

must be completed.”  So, do we submit a budget for the proposed MDFT QA only or do 

you want a budget from our entire agency which does a significant amount of work that 

is not related to the proposed project and has nothing to do with CT or DCF? 

Answer:  For purposes of submitting an application, DCF requires the consolidated 
budget to only include projected income and expenditures for one fiscal year using the 
state Fiscal Year 2019 (July 1, 2018 – 6/30/2019).  Please see answer to question 47 
below to access the DCF Consolidated Budget Form to be used. 
 

             
46. Item 2 on DCF Consolidated Budget Forms and Narrative Instructions (Revised April 

2012) it says: “Type in the DCF program service type at the top of each budget column 

where the numbers are?” What is the program service type for this RFP? Should we 

type in MDFT QA? 

Answer:   Yes, the program service type name is MDFT QA. 
 

47. On page 15 of the RFP there is link to an Excel file (xls) but when we click on the link we 

directed to the general DCF page and not to a specific Excel file.  

Answer:  Once on the general DCF page follow the below menu path to access the DCF 
RFP Budget Excel file. 

  For Providers – Contract Management - RFP Forms (towards bottom of page) – DCF 
RFP Budget  POS 

 
 

48. Can you please let us know which particular budget form we should use to submit this 

proposal? The only budget form we can find is Fiscal Year 08 and yet the Consolidated 

Budget Forms and Narrative Instructions were Revised April 2012. So we are not sure 

we have the correct Budget Form.  

Answer:  Please see answer to question 47 above. 
 
 

http://www.ct.gov/dcf/lib/dcf/contract_management/xls/dcf_rfp_budget.xls


49. Are organizations that have MDFT teams eligible for award of the MDFT-QA contract? 

May organizations provide both MDFT treatment as well as quality assurance and fidelity 

monitoring?  

Answer:  Yes, and Yes. 
 

50. Would receipt of the MDFT-QA contract negatively affect an organization’s ability to 

apply for or receive MDFT service delivery contracts from DCF in the future? 

Answer:  No, see Question 29. 
 
 

51. Do applicants need to be certified or approved by the model developer as an MDFT 

training and program monitoring site? Does this need to be in place prior to submission 

of an application or award of the contract? 

Answer:  No, and No. 
 
 

52. Will existing MDFT providers be allowed to bid on this contract?  We believe it is a 

conflict of interest for a MDFT provider to provide the QA given the purpose of the QA.  It 

would also give that provider a competitive advantage in future re-bids of the MDFT 

service which could violate competitive bidding rules. 

Answer:  Yes.  State procurement permits any qualified applicant to submit a proposal. 

 

 


